
1 
 

CITY OF DELAWARE 
CITY COUNCIL 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
1 SOUTH SANDUSKY STREET 

6:30 P.M. 
 

AGENDA 
 

REGULAR MEETING FEBRUARY 13, 2017 
 
1. ROLL CALL 
 
2. APPROVAL of the Motion Summary of the regular meeting of Council 

held January 23, 2017, as recorded and transcribed. 
 
3.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
4.  INVOCATION 

 
5. CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Establish February 27, 2017 at 7:45 p.m. as the date and time for  
public comment and second reading of Resolution No. 17-06, a 
resolution accepting the Downtown Parking Study, dated February 
6, 2017, submitted by MKSK Consultants.  

B. Acceptance of the Motion Summary of the Shade Tree Commission 
meeting held on October 25, 2016.  

C. Acceptance of the Motion Summary of the Planning Commission 
meeting held on November 2, 2016 and January 18, 2017.  

D. Resolution No. 17-04, a resolution accepting improvements for 
Glenross North, Section 1, Part 1.  

 
6. LETTERS, PETITIONS, AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
7. CONSIDERATION of Resolution No. 17-05, a resolution authorizing a 

Memorandum of Understanding to extend vision coverage to the 
AFSCME Clerical Group, effective February 1, 2017. 

 
8. CONSIDERATION of Resolution No. 17-06, a resolution accepting the 

Downtown Parking Study, dated February 6, 2017, submitted by MKSK 
Consultants.  

 
9. FOURTH READING of Ordinance No. 16-110, an ordinance amending 

Section 737.01 of the City of Delaware’s Codified Ordinances, Relating to 
Circuses (Council Permission, License, Bond and Insurance Required). 



2 
 

 
10.  SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 17-02, an ordinance amending 

Section 505.23 of the City of Delaware’s Codified Ordinances, relating to 
wild and exotic animals.  

 
11. SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 17-04, an ordinance approving the 

naming of the access road extending from Crystal Petal Drive to Cheshire 
Road and aligned parallel to Columbus Pike to Kingman Hill Drive.  

 
12. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 17-05, an ordinance approving a 

Combined Preliminary and Final development plan for Ohio Wesleyan 
University for an Honors House on approximately 0.78 acres located at 
81 Oak Hill Avenue zoned PO/I (Planned Office/Institutional District) 
and R-6 (Multi-Family Residential District). 

 
13. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 17-06, an ordinance approving a 

Final Development Plan for Ohio Wesleyan University for a Phase 3 Small 
Living Unit (SLU) on approximately 1.373 acres located on the north side 
of Rowland Avenue between South Washington Street and South Liberty 
Street on property zoned PO/I PMU (Planned Office/Institutional District 
with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District). 

 
14.  CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 17-07, an ordinance approving a 

Final Subdivision Plat for Homerock, LLC for Braumiller Woods Section 3 
consisting of 38 single family lots on approximately 13.408 acres zoned 
R-2 (One Family Residential District) and located on Colony Ridge Drive 
and Buena Park Drive.  

 
15. ADJOURNMENT 































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: CONSENT ITEM D DATE: 02/13/17 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 17-04 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Bill Ferrigno, Public Works Director/City Engineer  
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING IMPROVEMENTS FOR GLENROSS NORTH 
SECTION 1, PART 1. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This resolution conditionally accepts the now completed public improvements 
consisting of streets, water distribution, sanitary sewer and stormwater drainage 
for Glenross North Section 1, Part 1.  A performance bond has been posted which 
covers sidewalk, bikepath, signage and striping, yet to be completed. 
   
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED:  
This legislation is required in order to provide conformance to city code and 
publicly accept the infrastructure for the development prior to allowing a final 
plat to be recorded. The recording of the plat allows the creation of lots upon 
which home construction can begin. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 



 
PRESENTER(S): 
Bill Ferrigno, Public Works Director/City Engineer 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval at Second Reading 
   
ATTACHMENT(S): 
Summary Report 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 17-04 
 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING PUBLIC 
IMPROVEMENTS FOR GLENROSS NORTH SECTION 
1, PART 1. 

 
WHEREAS, the developer of Glenross North Section 1, Part 1, has 

complied with all of the conditions set forth in Codified Ordinance 1111.17 
which are necessary to obtain acceptance by the City of the public 
improvements for streets, water distribution, sanitary sewer collection and 
stormwater drainage; and 
 

WHEREAS, the developer has duly dedicated said public improvements 
to the City in writing. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 

SECTION 1.  That the City of Delaware hereby accepts the public 
improvements for streets, sanitary, water distribution, and stormwater 
drainage for Glenross Section 1, Part 1, and that the dedication of said 
improvements to the City is hereby accepted contingent upon the posting of a 
maintenance bond by the Developer in accordance with Section 1111.06 of the 
Delaware Codified ordinance.  

 
SECTION 2.  That this resolution shall be in force and effect immediately 

upon its passage. 
 

PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 
 
 
 



 
 
 

CITY OF DELAWARE, OHIO 
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

 
 
 MEMORANDUM 
 
TO: David Efland, Planning Director 
 
FROM: William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Public Works Director, City Engineer 
 
CC: Brad Stanton, Director of Public Utilities 
 
SUBJECT: Recommendation for Acceptance of Public Improvements for Glenross 

North Section 1, Part 1 
  
 
DATE: 2/13/17 
  
 
Glenross North Section 1, Part 1 is the first part of the 69 lot, 34.187 acres residential 
subdivision located east of Glenn Parkway and just north of the Glenross Golf Club 
Subdivision.  Section 1, Part 1 includes 48 single family lots on 23 acres.  
Construction for this project commenced in June 2016 and has been recently 
completed. 
 
All utilities including storm sewer, sanitary sewer, waterlines, and roadways were 
constructed in accordance with current city engineering specifications and are in 
consideration to be publicly owned and operated.  All utility lines and roadways have 
been inspected and found to be in acceptable condition by the Public Works 
Department.  The estimated value of new public improvements totals $ 1,446,461 and 
in accordance with City Codified Ordinance Section 1111.06, a two year maintenance 
bond has been posted by the developer, Vincent Romanelli, which would cover the 
expense of necessary repair work due to deficiencies or failure of materials or 
workmanship.  In addition, a six month performance bond has been posted which 
covers sidewalk, bikepath, signage and striping, yet to be completed.  The developer 
has paid all required plan review and construction inspection fees. Upon your 
satisfaction that all non-engineering related requirements have been completed as 
specified in the approved subdivision plans or other written commitments, we 
recommend acceptance of public improvements by the City. 
 
mls 
 
Attachments 
 
CC: Public Improvements Ordinance File 
       Glenross North Section 1, Part 1 Project File 



MATERIAL QUANTITY REPORT 
 
PROJECT:  Glenross North Section 1, part 1 

 
PC #:  2015-2558 

 
OWNER:  Vincent Romanelli 

 
CONTRACTOR: Savko Construction 

 
DESCRIPTION: 48 Single family lots on 23 acres 

 
API ORD.#:  

 
TOTAL UTILITY COST:  $ 1,446,461 

 
ENG #:  15-001 

 
SANITARY SEWER 

MANHOLES  19 EA Type C 
 
  

SERVICE TAPS 53 6” Wyes 
 
 

6-Inch    
 
 

8-Inch 2802 LF SDR-35 
 
 

10-Inch 996 LF SDR-35 
 
 

12-Inch   
 
 

15-Inch     
 
 

18-Inch   
 
 

21-Inch   
 
 

OTHER   
 
 

MISCELLANEOUS   
 

 

   
 

 

   
 

$97,935 
 

WATER SERVICE 
SERVICE TAPS  48 EA ¾” ‘K’ Copper 

 
 

MAIN TAPS   
 

 

HYDRANTS W/Valve   10 EA W/6” Valve and box 
 

 

6-Inch Valve   
 

 

8-Inch Valve 9  EA  
 

 

12-Inch Valve   
 

 

16-Inch Valve   
 

 

6-Inch Dip   
 
  

8-Inch Dip               3584  LF  
 
 

10-Inch Dip   
 
 

12-Inch Dip    
 
 

16-Inch Dip   
 
 

   
 
 

MISCELLANEOUS   
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 $260,532  

 
 



 
STORM SEWER 

MANHOLES 6 EA  
 

 

CATCH BASINS 32 EA  
 

 

CURB INLETS                  24 EA  
 

 

DET/RET BASIN     
 

 

12-Inch RCP 1739  LF  
 
 

15-Inch RCP 456 LF   
 
  

18-Inch RCP 1083 LF    
 
 

21-Inch RCP   
 
 

24-Inch RCP 1538 LF  
 
 

27-Inch RCP    
 
 

30-Inch RCP 421 LF  
 
 

36-Inch RCP   
 
 

42-Inch RCP    
 
 

48-Inch RCP   
 
 

HEADWALLS  2  
 

 

ROCK CHANNEL     
 

 

    
 

 
 

$ 361,171 
 

ROADWAY 
24'-0 ROAD                  

28'-0 ROAD 1920 LF   

32'-0 ROAD 1060 LF    

36’-0 ROAD    
 
2'-0 CURB 5960 LF   

BIKEPATH 4808  SF 8’ wide  
 

SIDEWALK  3670 SF 5’ wide  

MONUMENT BOXES 4 EA  
 

 

STREET LIGHTS                  28 EA  
 

 

(+) INTERSECTIONS   
 

 

(T) INTERSECTIONS   
 

 

CUL-DE-SAC    
 

 

 STRIPING/SIGNAGE   
 

 
 

$ 10,637 

   
 
               $ 726,823 



 
 
 

Location Map 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Site Map 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 7    DATE: 02/13/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 17-05 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Darren Shulman, City Attorney 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING TO 
EXTEND VISION COVERAGE TO THE AFSCME CLERICAL GROUP, EFFECTIVE 
FEBRUARY 1, 2017.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
The attached MOU would extend vision coverage and the $6 city contribution 
towards that coverage to the AFSCME Clerical bargaining group.  That group 
reached an agreement with the City prior to the expiration of their contract.  The 
intention is to provide this benefit during the current contract period, but require 
the parties to negotiate this term in the next contract. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Any change in benefits or pay must be approved by City Council. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S):  
$528.00 in 2017 based on 8 members signing up with effective date of 2/1/17. 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Darren Shulman, City Attorney 



 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 17-05 
 
 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A MEMORANDUM OF 

UNDERSTANDING TO EXTEND VISION COVERAGE 
TO THE AFSCME CLERICAL GROUP, EFFECTIVE 
FEBRUARY 1, 2017.  

 
WHEREAS, the City of Delaware has begun offering vision coverage, 

effective February 1, 2017; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Delaware desires to extend vision coverage to the 

AFSCME Clerical group; and 
 
WHEREAS, City Council must approve any changes to wages and/or 

benefits. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF DELAWARE, OHIO THAT: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That City Council hereby authorized the attached MOU 
regarding vision coverage, effective February 1, 2017.  
 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 





  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  8    DATE: 02/13/17 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 17-06 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
       Public Comment to be held  
       February 27, 2017 at 7:45 p.m. 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Jackie Walker, Assistant City Manager 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE DOWNTOWN PARKING STUDY, DATED 
FEBRUARY 6, 2017 SUBMITTED BY MKSK CONSULTANTS  
 
BACKGROUND: The City of Delaware entered into a contract in March of 2016 
with MKSK to perform a parking study for the downtown area.  The study and 
the recommendations were presented to City Council at their February 6, 2017 
Work Session, at which time Council agreed to formally consider adopting the 
plan and invite public comment on it.  Council consideration and action for the 
resolution is scheduled, along with a time for public comment, on February 27, 
2017.      
   
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:  
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): Various 
 
POLICY CHANGES: Various 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Jackie Walker, Assistant City Manager 
 



RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval After Public Comment 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
City of Delaware Implementation Matrix Plan and Parking Study 



RESOLUTION NO. 17-06 
 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE DOWNTOWN 
PARKING STUDY, DATED FEBRUARY 6, 2017 
SUBMITTED BY MKSK CONSULTANTS. 

 
WHEREAS, a need exists to make changes to the current downtown parking 

needs and inventory; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Delaware entered into an agreement with MKSK 

Consultants in March of 2016 to perform a comprehensive parking study for the 
City’s downtown; and   
 
 WHEREAS, City Council reviewed the parking needs assessment by MKSK 
Consultants and the proposed implementation plan and matrix at the Council 
Work Session on February 6, 2017; and 
 
 WHEREAS, If approved, the City will establish an internal working group 
that will consult with a downtown advocacy group made up of volunteers with 
varying interests in downtown parking to put into action the recommendations 
contained within the City of Delaware Implementation plan/ matrix and Parking 
study; and 
 
WHEREAS, City Council established February 27, 2017 at 7:45 p.m. as a time for 
the general public to voice their questions, comments or concerns regarding the 
downtown parking. 
  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware that: 
 

SECTION 1.  The attached City of Delaware Implementation Plan/ Matrix 
and Parking study is here by accepted by City Council.   

 
SECTION 2.  This resolution shall be effective immediately upon its passage. 

 
PASSED:                                    , 2017  YEAS        NAYS ____ 
        ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _____________________________  ____________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 













































































































































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 9    DATE: 02/13/17 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 16-110   RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FOURTH    PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       January 9, 2017 at 7:30 p.m. 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Darren Shulman, City Attorney 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 737.01 OF THE CITY OF DELAWARE’S 
CODIFIED ORDINANCES, RELATING TO CIRCUSES (COUNCIL PERMISSION, 
LICENSE, BOND AND INSURANCE REQUIRED).  
 
BACKGROUND: 
Last March, in conjunction with consideration of a circus permit, Council 
indicated it would like staff to propose an update to the Code.  The proposed 
changes update the requirements for getting a permit as these requirements have 
not been updated since 1976.  In addition, the revision allows rejection of the 
permit if the Council finds that the circus mistreats animals.  
 
Circus Pages has started the process for a permit for their tentative circus date 
of March 24, 2017.  The resolution will come before Council sometime in 2017. 
 
Prior to placing this item on the agenda a draft of this ordinance was provided to 
Circus Pages and the individuals who came to speak at the hearing last March. 
 
Update: The attached draft includes two changes adopted by council at the 
1/9/17 meeting.  One prohibits exotic animals and the other defines 
mistreatment based on APHIS citations, with an additional clause for the city’s 
animal control citations. 
   



The attached draft adds an explicit exception for accredited zoos.  This is not a 
policy change, as the section has not been applied to zoos in the past. However, 
this clarification addresses testimony we received and makes the exception 
clearer. 
 
After researching the definition of ‘menagerie’ staff has added a new section (e) 
to clarify that this section is not intended to apply to accredited zoos.  
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
The Code has not been updated since 1976. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
Allows Council to decline to issue a permit, if Council finds that the circus has 
mistreated animals. 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Darren Shulman, City Attorney 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
N/A 



ORDINANCE NO. 16-110 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 737.01 OF THE 
CITY OF DELAWARE’S CODIFIED ORDINANCES, 
RELATING TO CIRCUSES (COUNCIL PERMISSION, 
LICENSE, BOND AND INSURANCE REQUIRED).  
 

WHEREAS, Section 737.01 has not been amended since 1976; and 
 
WHEREAS, Council has determined that the criteria for issuing a circus 

permit must be updated; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware; State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  737.01 of the City of Delaware Codified Ordinances shall be 
amended as follows: 
 
737.01. - Council permission, license, bond and insurance required.  
(a) No person, firm or corporation, except a licensee under this chapter, shall 
operate, manage, exhibit or produce any circus, carnival or menagerie within the 
City.  A LICENSE SHALL NOT BE ISSUED FOR A CIRCUS, CARNIVAL, OR 
MENAGERIE THAT INCLUDES WILD OR EXOTIC ANIMALS, AS DEFINED BY 
505.23 OF THE DELAWARE CODIFIED ORDINANCES. 
(b) Every person, firm or corporation desiring to engage in such business shall 
secure the permission of Council therefor, and shall obtain from the City Manager 
a license therefor, for which a fee of ten dollars ($10.00) per day THE FEE SET 
FORTH IN THE FEE SCHEDULE of presence and/or operation in the City shall 
be PAID charged. A LICENSE APPLICATION MUST BE SUBMITTED AT LEAST 
30 DAYS PRIOR TO THE EVENT.  IF TIMELY FILED, the permission of Council 
shall be granted unless it affirmatively appears DETERMINES that any such THE 
proposed circus, carnival or menagerie shall in any way endanger or threaten the 
public peace, property, health, safety or welfare of the City OR THAT THE 
CIRCUS HAS RECEIVED MORE THAN FIVE NON-CRITICAL OR TWO 
CRITICAL NON-COMPLIANCE CITATIONS BASED ON INSPECTIONS BY THE 
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE’S ANIMAL AND PLANT 
HEALTH INSPECTION SERVICE (APHIS) OR HAS RECEIVED AN ANIMAL 
CONTROL CITATION BY THE CITY, WITHIN THE PAST THREE YEARS.  
(c) If the issuance of a license under this section is authorized by Council, the 
same shall not be issued until the applicant files with the City Manager a bond 
executed by the licensee as principal and by a good and sufficient corporate surety 
company licensed to do business in Ohio as surety, and whose name appears on 
the current list published by the United States Treasury Department of accepted 
sureties on Federal bonds, conditioned that the principal obligor will operate any 



such circus, carnival or menagerie in strict accordance with the terms of this 
chapter and other applicable provisions of these Codified Ordinances; that the 
principal will remedy any and all damages to and shall clean up any refuse, litter, 
debris or dirt deposited on any streets, curbs, gutters, water lines, fire hydrants 
and other public property, occasioned in any manner by his operation of such 
circus, carnival or menagerie. Such bond shall inure to the benefit of the City, 
shall be in a form to comply herewith, shall be in the amount of ONE HUNDRED 
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($100,000) twenty thousand dollars ($20,000.00) and 
shall be approved by the City Attorney.  
(d) In addition to the aforesaid bond, the applicant shall furnish to the City 
Manager a certified copy of a certificate of general liability and property damage 
insurance, NAMING THE CITY AS AN ADDITIONAL INSURED in the amounts as 
follows:  
(1) Public liability insurance in an amount of not less than ONE MILLION one 
hundred thousand dollars ($1,000,000.00) for injuries, including accidental 
death, to any one person; subject to the same limit for each person, in an amount 
not less than three hundred thousand dollars ($300,000.00) on account of each 
accident;  
(2) Property damage insurance in the amount of not less than ONE MILLION 
fifty thousand dollars ($50,000.00)($1,000,000.00) on account of any one 
accident which insurance shall protect the general public, and shall save, 
indemnify and keep harmless, within such limits, the City against all liability, 
judgments, damages, costs and expenses which may in any way accrue against 
the City in consequence of the granting of such license and will in all things 
strictly comply with the conditions of such license.  
(e) THIS SECTION DOES NOT APPLY TO ASSOCIATION OF ZOOS AND 
AQUARIUMS (AZA) OR ZOOLOGICAL ASSOCIATION OF AMERICA (ZAA)  
ACCREDITED ZOOS. 
 

SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 10    DATE: 08/13/17 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-02    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING:  YES 
       February 27, 2017 at 7:30 p.m. 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Darren Shulman, City Attorney 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 505.23 OF THE CITY OF DELAWARE’S 
CODIFIED ORDINANCES, RELATING TO WILD AND EXOTIC ANIMALS.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
At its last meeting, City Council incorporated an amendment to its pending 
circus legislation which would prohibit circuses using wild and exotic animals 
from performing in the City.  In order to effectuate the intent of that amendment, 
a corresponding change is needed to the City’s existing exotic and wild animal 
ordinance.  This legislation makes that change, while attempting to ensure that 
accredited Zoos are permitted to bring demonstration animals to the City.  A 
draft of this legislation has been provided to the Columbus zoo for comment. 
  
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
This legislation will be needed to implement changes that were incorporated into 
a proposed ordinance amending the circus permit process.  
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 



POLICY CHANGES: 
This would remove the exception for circuses and add an explicit exception for 
accredited zoos.  
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Darren Shulman, City Attorney 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
N/A 



ORDINANCE NO. 17-02 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 505.23 OF THE 
CITY OF DELAWARE’S CODIFIED ORDINANCES, 
RELATING TO WILD AND EXOTIC ANIMALS.  
 

WHEREAS, Section 737.01 has not been amended since 1976; and 
 
WHEREAS, Council has adopted a change to 737.01 which requires a 

corresponding amendment to make effective; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware; State of Ohio: 
 

 SECTION 1.  505.23 of the City of Delaware Codified Ordinances shall be 
amended as follows:   
 
505.23. - Wild or exotic animals.  
(a) No person shall market in any form wholesale or retail, any wild or exotic 

animal and any animal otherwise prohibited by any other section of these 
Codified Ordinances. Exceptions to this prohibition include those animals 
native to the farm and sold at auction or by private sale, such as horses, 
cattle, swine and poultry and those animals sold by pet dealers or by private 
sale, such as domestic cats, domestic dogs, domestic rabbits, guinea pigs, 
chinchilla, mice, hamsters, gerbils, psittacine birds and nonpoisonous, non-
man eating fish.  

(b) No person shall own or harbor any wild or exotic animal. Exceptions to this 
prohibition are circuses, veterinarians (for the purpose of medical 
treatment), ACCREDITED ZOOS, and educational research facilities.  

 
Farm animals such as horses, cattle, swine and poultry, as well as domestic cats, 
domestic dogs, domestic rabbits, guinea pigs, chinchilla, mice, hamsters, gerbils, 
psittacine birds and non-man eating fish may be owned and kept pursuant to the 
requirements of the Codified Ordinances of the City of Delaware including, but not 
limited to, the Zoning Code.  
 
Permission may be given by the City Manager or his designate for a person to 
temporarily keep, care or protect a wild animal native to the State which has been 
deemed to be homeless, provided it is under the care of a licensed veterinarian.  
 
(c) SUBJECT TO THE EXCEPTIONS ABOVE, No person shall own, harbor or 

keep any animal listed by the Federal Government or considered by the 



American Humane Society, Local and State authorities to be an endangered 
species.  

(d) Whoever violates any provision of this section is guilty of a misdemeanor of 
the fourth degree. Additionally, the Court shall order that such animal be 
removed from the City or be humanely destroyed by a licensed veterinarian, 
the Dog Warden, the Humane Society, a law enforcement officer or the 
Community Service Officer.  

 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 11    DATE: 02/13/17 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-04    RESOLUTION NO:  
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Public Works Director/City Engineer 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING THE NAMING OF THE ACCESS ROAD 
EXTENDING FROM CRYSTAL PETAL DRIVE TO CHESHIRE ROAD AND 
ALIGNED PARALLEL TO COLUMBUS PIKE TO KINGMAN HILL DRIVE. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This access road extends from Crystal Petal Drive to Cheshire Road and is 
aligned parallel to Columbus Pike (US23).  The access road is unnamed and 
currently serves as an access road for five (5) properties which are addressed off 
Columbus Pike.  Residents along this access road have petitioned the City of 
Delaware to name the roadway “Kingman Hill Drive”.  This change is also 
recommended by City Staff to deter confusion for emergency response to these 
properties and any incident that occurs along this roadway. If the naming of the 
access road is approved, this change will be forwarded to the County Recorder’s 
office as well as the Delaware Post Office notifying both entities of the new street 
name.  Each of the five (5) properties will maintain the same house number, and 
for a period of two (2) years be able to receive mail addressed to both Kingman 
Hill Drive and Columbus Pike.  After two (2) years, only the Kingman Hill Drive 
address will be recognized.  The CMPM property (former Floyd Brown building) 
located at the NE corner of Cheshire and proposed Kingman Hill Drive is 
unaffected by this legislation as its access is off of Cheshire Road and will 
continue to maintain its address off Columbus Pike. 
 
 



REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Per ORC 723.04: The legislative authority of a municipal corporation, upon 
being satisfied that there is good cause for such change of name, should be 
ordinance, declare the name thereof changed. The original ordinance or a 
certified copy thereof shall be recorded in the official records of the county 
recorder. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
The action is being taken as a result of the Parking and Safety Committee 
recommendation at the August 15, 2016 meeting. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
The cost of materials to install the signage is estimated at $100.00 to come out 
of the Public Works Traffic Division annual operating budget. 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
None 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Public Works Director/City Engineer 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval 
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Letters to Property Owners  
Petition from Residents 



ORDINANCE NO. 17-04 
 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING THE NAMING OF THE 
ACCESS ROAD EXTENDING FROM CRYSTAL PETAL 
DRIVE TO CHESHIRE ROAD AND ALIGNED 
PARALLEL TO COLUMBUS PIKE TO KINGMAN HILL 
DRIVE. 
 

WHEREAS, it has been petitioned by residents to name the access road 
Kingman Hill Drive; and 

 
WHEREAS, it has been determined by Chief Building Official that the 

access road shall have a recorded street name to deter confusion for emergency 
response; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Parking and Safety Committee has endorsed this 

modification by a 3-0 vote at the August 15, 2016 meeting;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 

SECTION 1.  That the access road extending from Crystal Petal Drive to 
Cheshire Road and aligned parallel to Columbus Pike be named Kingman Hill 
Drive. 

 
SECTION 2. This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code. 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS___ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 
 





























  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 12    DATE: 02/13/17 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-05    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A COMBINED PRELIMINARY AND  FINAL 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR OHIO WESLEYAN UNIVERSITY FOR AN HONORS 
HOUSE ON APPROXIMATELY 0.78 ACRES LOCATED AT 81 OAK HILL AVENUE 
ZONED PO/I (PLANNED OFFICE/INSTITUTIONAL DISTRICT) AND R-6 (MULTI-
FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Ohio Wesleyan University received a generous donation to replace the existing 
Honors House structure and build a new larger building. The existing Honors 
House at 81 Oak Hill Avenue, driveway and appurtenances would be razed and 
a new building constructed that would encompass the existing lot and the area 
just east of the lot. The new building would accommodate 27 students in the 
OWU Honors Program while 11 students are accommodated in the existing 
structure which is dated and in need of major repairs. 

The new 7,123 square foot Honors House would have access from Oak Hill 
Avenue from an existing curb cut just east of the proposed building that accesses 
campus facilities.  It would be setback approximately 38 feet from Oak Hill 
Avenue which is about the same distance as the razed Honors House while the 
new building would be setback approximately 23 feet from the western property 
line while the razed house was only setback 2 to 3 feet (the current zoning 



required side yard setback is 9 feet).  An 8 foot wide access walk with two sets of 
steps would access the new building from the existing sidewalk along Oak Hill 
Avenue. In the rear of the building would be a patio with access to the existing 
access drive just east of the building. The design character of the Honors House 
would mimic the existing single family housing stock in this area with two story 
elevations, front porches, gabled pitch roofs, etc., and would have to achieve 
compliance with Chapter 1171.08 Residential Design Criteria. The building 
would have a stone veneer wainscoting with fiber cement siding comprising the 
remainder of the elevation. The color scheme of the Honors House would be blue 
and yellow. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1129.06 Development Plan Review 
Procedures of the zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 7-0 on February 1, 2017. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval with the documented conditions after second 
reading. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



ORDINANCE NO. 17-05 
 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A COMBINED 
PRELIMINARY AND  FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR 
OHIO WESLEYAN UNIVERSITY FOR AN HONORS 
HOUSE ON APPROXIMATELY 0.78 ACRES LOCATED AT 
81 OAK HILL AVENUE ZONED PO/I (PLANNED 
OFFICE/INSTITUTIONAL DISTRICT) AND R-6 (MULTI-
FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT). 
 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of  
February 1, 2017, recommended approval of a Combined Preliminary and Final 
Development Plan for Ohio Wesleyan University for an Honors House on 
approximately 0.78 acres located at 81 Oak Hill Avenue zoned PO/I (Planned 
Office/Institutional District) and R-6 (Multi-Family Residential District) (PC 2017-
0016); and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Combined Preliminary and Final Development Plan 
for Ohio Wesleyan University for an Honors House on approximately 0.78 acres 
located at 81 Oak Hill Avenue zoned PO/I (Planned Office/Institutional District) 
and R-6 (Multi-Family Residential District), is hereby confirmed, approved, and 
accepted, with the following conditions that: 
 
1. The applicant needs to obtain engineering approvals, including any storm 

water and utility issues that need to be worked out through the Engineering 
and Utilities Departments.  All comments regarding the layout and details of 
the project are preliminary and subject to modification or change based on 
the final technical review by the Engineering Department once a complete 
plan set is submitted for review. 

2. Seven parking spaces at 15 Williams Drive shall be allocated for the 
Honors House prior to final occupancy approval.  

3. The new Honors House shall achieve compliance with the submitted 
building elevations and Chapter 1171.08 Residential Design Standards. 

4. 6 caliper inches of trees shall be replaced for the Honors House to achieve 
compliance with Chapter 1168 Tree Preservation Regulations and are 
allowed to be planted elsewhere on the campus per the previously approved 
OWU planting methodology.  

5. The landscape plan shall be submitted, reviewed and approved by the 
Shade Tree Commission. 



6. The lighting plan shall be submitted, reviewed and approved by the Chief 
Building Official. 

7. The two parcels shall be consolidated into a single lot or re-platted into two 
lots prior to the occupancy permit of the Honors House. 
 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 
 



























































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 13    DATE: 02/13/17 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-06    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR OHIO 
WESLEYAN UNIVERSITY FOR A PHASE 3 SMALL LIVING UNIT (SLU) ON 
APPROXIMATELY 1.373 ACRES LOCATED ON THE NORTH SIDE OF ROWLAND 
AVENUE BETWEEN SOUTH WASHINGTON STREET AND SOUTH LIBERTY 
STREET ON PROPERTY  ZONED PO/I PMU (PLANNED OFFICE/INSTITUTIONAL 
DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT). 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 In August 2015, Ohio Wesleyan University received a Rezoning Amendment, 
Conditional Use Permit, and Preliminary Development Plan for Phases 1-5 and 
Phase 1 Final Development Plan approval by the Planning Commission and City 
Council. Then in June 2016 the Phase 2 SLU received Final Development Plan 
approval by the Planning Commission and City Council. The Phase 1 SLU is 
constructed and occupied while the Phase 2 SLU is constructed but not 
occupied. Now Ohio Wesleyan University is proposing the Phase 3 SLU which is 
located between the two aforementioned SLU’s. From a staff’s perspective, a 
minor change to the Preliminary Development Plan is proposed by moving the 
Phase 4 SLU from Rowland Avenue to along South Liberty Street just north of 
the Phase 1 SLU (this is where the proposed detention basin was in the previous 
plan) because of a private access easement along Rowland Avenue makes it 
prohibitive to construct four SLU’s along the frontage of Rowland Avenue as well 
as having more detailed storm water information indicating that a pond is not 
needed as originally contemplated.  



 
The new SLU would have access from Rowland Avenue and would be two stories 
in height and have 24 units that encompass 5,763 square feet with a maroon 
and grey color scheme.  In addition, there would be private sidewalks on each 
side and behind the Phase 3 SLU that would connect to the adjacent SLU’s and 
to the public sidewalk along Rowland Avenue. The design character of the Phase 
3 SLU would mimic the other two constructed SLU’s and the existing single 
family housing stock in the area with two story elevations, front porches, gabled 
pitch roofs, etc., per the attached building elevations and would have to achieve 
compliance with Chapter 1171.08 Residential Design Criteria.  
 
The general shared long term desire is to vacate Rowland Avenue for vehicular 
travel and extend the “jaywalk” concept in this area.  The logistics of vacating 
(abandoning) the public street would have to be vetted with all City departments 
and the University to determine the feasibility of such request as the University 
and the City are the only two adjacent property owners at this time. The City and 
Ohio Wesleyan University have had more internal detailed discussions about the 
vacation of the street since June 2016 (the application date of the Phase 2 SLU) 
and which are leading to a formal proposal for the City to review in the near 
future. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1129.06 Development Plan Review 
Procedures of the zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 7-0 on February 1, 2017. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval with the documented conditions after second 
reading. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



ORDINANCE NO. 17-06 
 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL DEVELOPMENT 
PLAN FOR OHIO WESLEYAN UNIVERSITY FOR A 
PHASE 3 SMALL LIVING UNIT (SLU) ON 
APPROXIMATELY 1.373 ACRES LOCATED ON THE 
NORTH SIDE OF ROWLAND AVENUE BETWEEN 
SOUTH WASHINGTON STREET AND SOUTH LIBERTY 
STREET ON PROPERTY  ZONED PO/I PMU (PLANNED 
OFFICE/INSTITUTIONAL DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED 
MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT). 
 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of  
February 1, 2017, recommended approval of a Final Development Plan for Ohio 
Wesleyan University for a Phase 3 Small Living Unit (SLU) on approximately 1.373 
acres located on the north side of Rowland Avenue between South Washington 
Street and South Liberty Street on property zoned PO/I PMU (Planned 
Office/Institutional District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) (PC 2017-
0088); and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Final Development Plan for Ohio Wesleyan University 
for a Phase 3 Small Living Unit (SLU) on approximately 1.373 acres located on the 
north side of Rowland Avenue between South Washington Street and South 
Liberty Street on property zoned PO/I PMU (Planned Office/Institutional District 
with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District), is hereby confirmed, approved, and 
accepted, with the following conditions that: 
 
1. The applicant needs to obtain engineering approvals, including any storm 

water and utility issues that need to be worked out through the Engineering 
and Utilities Departments.  All comments regarding the layout and details of 
the project are preliminary and subject to modification or change based on 
the final technical review by the Engineering Department once a complete 
plan set is submitted for review. 

2. Eleven parking spaces at the Hamilton Williams Campus Center shall be 
allocated for the Phase 3 SLU prior to final occupancy approval.  

3. The new SLU shall achieve compliance with the design standards of the 
approved development text per the submitted building elevation. 

4. 196 caliper inches of trees shall be replaced for the Phase 3 SLU to achieve 
compliance with Chapter 1168 Tree Preservation Regulations and are 



allowed to be planted elsewhere on the campus per the previously approved 
OWU planting methodology.  

5. OWU shall plant street trees on Rowland Avenue concurrent with 
construction of this final SLU on Rowland Avenue. 

6. The landscape plan shall be submitted, reviewed and approved by the 
Shade Tree Commission. 

7. The lighting plan shall be submitted, reviewed and approved by the Chief 
Building Official. 

8. The seven parcels shall be consolidated prior to the occupancy permit of the 
Phase 3 SLU. 
 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 
 









































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 14    DATE: 02/13/17 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-07    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL SUBDIVISION PLAT FOR HOMEROCK 
LLC FOR BRAUMILLER WOODS SECTION 3 CONSISTING OF 38 SINGLE 
FAMILY LOTS ON APPROXIMATELY 13.408 ACRES ZONED R-2 (ONE FAMILY 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) AND LOCATED ON COLONY RIDGE DRIVE AND 
BUENA PARK DRIVE. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The entire Braumiller Woods Subdivision consists of 123 single-family lots on 
49.7 acres with a gross density of 2.47 dwelling units per acre. City Council 
approved the Preliminary Subdivision Plat on January 12, 2004 (Ord. 04-12) 
and Final Subdivision Plat for Section 1 on December 20, 2004 (Ord. 04-215) 
which consists of 35 single-family lots. The Final Subdivision Plat for Section 2 
was approved by City Council on March 12, 2012 (Ord 12-19) which consisted 
of  23 lots while Section 2A  was approved by City Council on March 10, 2014 
(Ord 14-15) which also contained 23 lots. Section 3 is the final section and 
would contain 38 single family lots instead of the originally 42 lots in this 
section. Therefore the overall number of lots in the subdivision has been 
reduced from 123 to 119 single family lots.  
 
Section 3 is located south of Section 2A with Colony Ridge Drive extending in a 
southerly and then easterly direction from Section 2A to Glenn Parkway and 
with Buena Park Drive extending in a southerly direction to connect to Colony 
Ridge Drive. The lots range in size from 0.233 to 0.588 acres with a minimum 



lot width of 70 feet and depth of 145 feet (10,150 square feet – 0.233 acre).  The 
front yard setbacks are 35 feet, side yard setbacks are 10 feet and the rear yard 
setbacks are 45 feet.  All the houses have to achieve compliance with the City 
adopted Residential Design Criteria and Performance Standards in Section 
1171.08 of the Planning & Zoning Code which includes  at least 35% of the 
front elevation of all homes shall be finished with natural materials including 
brick, natural or cultured stone, cedar siding or cement fiber siding (i.e. Hardi-
plank). The developer would be required to contribute $26,808.18 to achieve 
compliance with the parkland dedication requirements and $43,451.21 to 
achieve compliance with tree replacement requirements which were both 
agreed to during the approval of the Preliminary Subdivision Plat in 2004. Also, 
the plan identifies a landscape buffer along Glenn Parkway which shall be 
maintained by the Homeowners Association. In addition, the landscape and 
lighting plans have been approved by the Shade Tree Commission and Chief 
Building Official respectively.  
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1111.04 Final Plat Submission 
Requirements of the zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 6-1 on February 1, 2017. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval as submitted with the documented conditions at 
second reading. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



ORDINANCE NO. 17-07 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL SUBDIVISION 
PLAT FOR HOMEROCK LLC FOR BRAUMILLER WOODS 
SECTION 3 CONSISTING OF 38 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS 
ON APPROXIMATELY 13.408 ACRES ZONED R-2 (ONE 
FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) AND LOCATED ON 
COLONY RIDGE DRIVE AND BUENA PARK DRIVE. 
 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of February 1, 2017 
recommended approval of a Final Subdivision Plat for Homerock LLC for 
Braumiller Woods Section 3 consisting of 38 single family lots on approximately 
13.408 acres zoned R-2 (One Family Residential District) and located on Colony 
Ridge Drive and Buena Park Drive (PC 2017-0017); and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Final Subdivision Plat for Homerock LLC for 
Braumiller Woods Section 3 consisting of 38 single family lots on approximately 
13.408 acres zoned R-2 (One Family Residential District) and located on Colony 
Ridge Drive and Buena Park Drive, is hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted 
with the following conditions that: 
 
1. The Applicant needs to obtain final engineering approvals, including any 

stormwater and utility issues that need to be worked out through the 
Engineering and Utilities Departments. All comments regarding the layout 
and details of the project are preliminary and subject to modification or 
change based on the final technical review by the Engineering Department.  

2. The Transportation Contribution shall be due and payable at the time of 
issuance of the building permits, at a cost of $1,000 per lot 

3. The house construction shall comply with Chapter 1171.08 Residential 
Development Design Criteria and Performances Standards and the rezoning 
architectural design standards approved in the rezoning of the property. 

4. The developer shall pay $26,808.18 to satisfy the parkland dedication 
requirement in Section 3 prior to the first building permit approval. 

5. The developer shall pay $43,451.21 to satisfy the tree replacement 
requirement in Section 3 prior to the first building permit approval. 

6. A lighting plan shall be submitted, reviewed and approved by the Chief 
Building Official. 



7. The landscaping shall be installed per Overall Landscaping/Tree 
Replacement Plan that was approved by the Shade Tree Commission on 
February 28, 2006. 

8. If an entrance sign is proposed at the intersection of Colony Ridge Drive and 
Glenn Parkway, it shall be review and approved by staff along with being 
maintained by the Homeowners Association. 

9. The landscaping along Glenn Parkway shall be maintained by the 
Homeowners Association.  

10. A condition on the plat shall identify this section as being located in the 
Delaware South New Community Authority and within the Braumiller Tax 
Increment Finance (TIF) District.  

11. The City right-of-way easement along Glenn Parkway (rear of lots 11772-
1177) shall be included on the final subdivision plat. 

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 






























	01 agenda 20170213
	CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS

	02 January 27 Council Minutes
	03 oct  25 shade tree minutes
	04 planning minutes 20161102
	05  planning minutes 20170118
	06 fact sheet res 17-04 glenross north sec1 pt 1 api
	07 res 17-04 glenross north sec1 pt1 api
	08 res 17-04 glenross north sec1 pt1 api staff report
	09 fact sheet res 17-05 vision
	10 res 17- 05 vision coverage
	11 res 17-05 vision coverage contract
	12 fact sheet res 17-06 parking study
	13 res-17-06 parking study
	14 memo jackie walker
	15 memo kent shafer
	16 parking study
	17 fact sheet ord 16-110 amend sec 737.01 circus
	18 ord 16-110 amend 737.01 circus-current
	ORDINANCE NO. 16-110

	19 fact sheet ord 17-02  amend sec 505.23 exotic animals
	20 ord 17-02  amend sec 505.23 exotic animals
	ORDINANCE NO. 17-02
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	21 fact sheet ord 17-04 name access road chrystal petal cheshire rd
	22 ord 17-04 name access road crystal petal cheshire rd
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____

	23 ord 17-04 kingman hill drive memo
	24 kingman hill access rd
	25 fact sheet ord 17-05 OWU Honors House CPFDP
	26 ord 17-05 OWU Honors House CPFDP
	ORDINANCE NO. 17-05
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	27 ord 17-05 owu honors house cpfdp staff report
	28 fact sheet ord 17-06 OWU SLU's FDP PH3
	29 ord 17-06 OWU Rowland Ave SLUs  FDP Phase 3
	ORDINANCE NO. 17-06
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	30 ord 17- 06 owu fin dev plan slu's  staff report
	31 fact sheet ord 17-07 fin subdiv plat braumiller
	32 ord 17- 07 fin subdiv plat braumiller
	ORDINANCE NO. 17-07
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	33 ord 17-07  fin sub plat braumiller staff report

